810 Invoice

Version: 2.1.01

Company: ScanSource Publication: 5/25/2017

Trading Partner: All Customers

Current: 4/16/2018

Notes

Table of Contents

310) Inv	/oice	1
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	3
	GS	Functional Group Header	5
	ST	Transaction Set Header	7
	BIG	Beginning Segment for Invoice	8
	NTE	Note/Special Instruction	9
	CUR	Currency	10
	REF	Reference Identification	11
	N1	Loop Name	12
	N1	Name	13
	N3	Address Information	14
	N4	Geographic Location	15
	ITD	Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	16
	DTM	Date/Time Reference	17
	IT1	Loop Baseline Item Data (Invoice)	18
	IT1	Baseline Item Data (Invoice)	19
	PID	Loop Product/Item Description	21
	PID	Product/Item Description	22
	REF	Reference Identification	23
	CAD	Carrier Detail	24
	TDS	Total Monetary Value Summary	25
	TXI	Tax Information	26
	CAD	Carrier Detail	27
	SAC	Loop Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	28
	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	29
	СТТ	Transaction Totals	31
	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	32
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	33
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	34

810 Invoice

Functional Group=

Purpose: This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Invoice Transaction Set (810) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide for customary and established business and industry practice relative to the billing for goods and services provided.

Not Defined:

<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
3		ISA	Interchange Control Header	M	1			Must use
5		GS	Functional Group Header	M	1			Must use

Heading:

	_							
<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
7	010	ST	Transaction Set Header	M	1			Must use
8	020	BIG	Beginning Segment for Invoice	М	1			Must use
9	030	NTE	Note/Special Instruction	0	100			Used
10	040	CUR	Currency	0	1			Future
11	050	REF	Reference Identification	0	12			Used
12	LOOP	<u>ID - N1</u>				<u>200</u>		
13	070	N1	Name	0	1			Used
14	090	N3	Address Information	0	2			Used
15	100	N4	Geographic Location	0	1			Used
16	130	ITD	Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	0	>1			Used
17	140	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	10			Used

Detail:

<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
18	LOOP	<u>LOOP ID - IT1</u> <u>200000</u>						
19	010	IT1	Baseline Item Data (Invoice)	0	1			Used
21	LOOP	ID - PID				<u>1000</u>		
22	060	PID	Product/Item Description	0	1			Used
23	120	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1			Used
24	160	CAD	Carrier Detail	0	>1			Used

Summary:

<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
25	010	TDS	Total Monetary Value Summary	M	1			Must use
26	020	TXI	Tax Information	0	10			Used
27	030	CAD	Carrier Detail	0	1			Used
28	LOOP							
29	040	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge	0	1			Used

4/16/2018 1

<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name Information	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>		
31	070	CTT	Transaction Totals	0	1		N3/070	Used		
32	080	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	М	1			Must use		
Not Defined:										
<u>Page</u>	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>		
33		GE	Functional Group Trailer	M	1			Must use		
34		IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	М	1			Must use		

Notes:

3/070 Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of IT1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities invoiced (IT102) for each IT1 segment.

ISA Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>			
ISA01	101	Authorization Information Qualifier	r M	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code to identify the typ All valid standard codes are used.	e of information	on in the	Authorization	Information			
ISA02	102	Authorization Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use			
		Description: Information used for ad interchange sender or the data in the Authorization Information Qualifier (IC	interchange;						
ISA03	103	Security Information Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code to identify the typ All valid standard codes are used.	e of information	on in the	Security Inforr	nation			
ISA04	104	Security Information	M	AN	10/10	Must use			
		Description: This is used for identify sender or the data in the interchange Information Qualifier (I03)							
ISA05	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Qualifier to designate the system/method of code structure used to designate the sender or receiver ID element being qualified							
		CodeName12Phone (Telephone CompaniesZZMutually Defined	s)						
ISA06	106	Interchange Sender ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use			
		Description: Identification code publification receiver ID to route data to them; the element	•		•				
		User Note 1:							
		SCANSOURCE NA: 8642882432							
		SCANSOURCE EU: 8009155550							
		SCANSOURCE LA: 3053984000							
		TEST: 8643298222							
ISA07	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Qualifier to designate the	he system/me	thod of c	ode structure (used to designate			

Description: Qualifier to designate the system/method of code structure used to designate the sender or receiver ID element being qualified

All valid standard codes are used.

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
ISA08	107	Interchange Receiver ID	M	AN	15/15	Must use
		Description: Identification code published used by the sender as their sending ID, the receiving ID to route data to them				
ISA09	108	Interchange Date	М	DT	6/6	Must use
		Description: Date of the interchange				
ISA10	109	Interchange Time	М	TM	4/4	Must use
		Description: Time of the interchange				
ISA11	I10	Interchange Control Standards Identifier	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code to identify the agency message that is enclosed by the interchan All valid standard codes are used.				ard used by the
ISA12	l11	Interchange Control Version Number	М	ID	5/5	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the version All valid standard codes are used.	number	of the int	erchange cont	rol segments
ISA13	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		Description: A control number assigned b	y the int	erchange	sender	
ISA14	l13	Acknowledgment Requested	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code sent by the sender to real All valid standard codes are used.	request a	an interch	ange acknowl	edgment (TA1)
ISA15	l14	Usage Indicator	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code to indicate whether date production or information	ta enclos	sed by thi	s interchange	envelope is test,
		CodeNamePProduction DataTTest Data				
ISA16	l15	Component Element Separator	М		1/1	Must use
		Description: Type is not applicable; the co	omponer	nt elemer	nt separator is	a delimiter and

Description: Type is not applicable; the component element separator is a delimiter and not a data element; this field provides the delimiter used to separate component data elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element separator and the segment terminator

GS Functional Group Header

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>				
GS01	479	Functional Identifier Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use				
		Description: Code identifying a group of a	application	on related	d transaction s	ets				
		Code Name								
		IN Invoice Information (810,819)								
GS02	142	Application Sender's Code	M	AN	2/15	Must use				
		Description: Code identifying party sending transmission; codes agreed to by trading partners								
		User Note 1: See codes in ISA06								
GS03	124	Application Receiver's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use				
		Description: Code identifying party receiv partners	ing trans	smission;	codes agreed	to by trading				
GS04	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use				
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	/IDD							
GS05	337	Time	М	TM	4/8	Must use				
		Description: Time expressed in 24-hour of HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = houseconds (00-59) and DD = decimal second = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)	ours (00 ds; decin	-23), M =	minutes (00-5	9), S = integer				
GS06	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use				
		Description: Assigned number originated	and mai	intained l	by the sender					
GS07	455	Responsible Agency Code	M	ID	1/2	Must use				
		Description: Code identifying the issuer o with Data Element 480 All valid standard codes are used.	f the sta	ndard; th	is code is used	d in conjunction				
GS08	480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	M	AN	1/12	Must use				

Description: Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed

Code Name

004010 Draft Standards Approved for Publication by ASC X12 Procedures Review Board through October 1997

Semantics:

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

Comments:

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

ST Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
ST01	143	Transaction Set Identifier Code	M	ID	3/3	Must use
		Description: Code uniquely identifying a T	ransacti	on Set		
		Code Name				
		810 Invoice				
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		Description 11 (f)				

Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set

functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set

Semantics:

1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).

BIG Beginning Segment for Invoice

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of an invoice transaction set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>				
BIG01	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use				
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD								
		User Note 1: Invoice Date								
BIG02	76	Invoice Number	М	AN	1/22	Must use				
		Description: Identifying number assigned	by issue	er						
BIG03	373	Date	0	DT	8/8	Not used				
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	IDD							
BIG04	324	Purchase Order Number	0	AN	1/22	Used				
		Description: Identifying number for Purcha	ase Orde	er assign	ed by the orde	rer/purchaser				
BIG07	640	Transaction Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use				
		Description: Code specifying the type of t	ransactio	on						
		Code Name								
		CR Credit Memo								
		DI Debit Invoice								

Semantics:

- 1. BIG01 is the invoice issue date.
- 2. BIG03 is the date assigned by the purchaser to purchase order.

Comments:

1. BIG07 is used only to further define the type of invoice when needed.

NTE Note/Special Instruction

Pos: 030 Max: 100 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit information in a free-form format, if necessary, for comment or special instruction

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
NTE01	363	Note Reference Code	0	ID	3/3	Used
		Description: Code identifying the functional	al area c	r purpos	e for which the	note applies
		Code Name GEN Entire Transaction Set				
NTE02	352	Description	М	AN	1/80	Must use
		Description: A free-form description to clar	rify the r	elated da	ata elements a	nd their content

Comments:

 The NTE segment permits free-form information/data which, under ANSI X12 standard implementations, is not machine processable. The use of the NTE segment should therefore be avoided, if at all possible, in an automated environment.

User Note 1:

Free-form text used on certain EU invoices for legal text.

CUR Currency

Pos: 040 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Future

Purpose: To specify the currency (dollars, pounds, francs, etc.) used in a transaction

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CUR01	98	Entity Identifier Code	M	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code identifying an organizatindividual	ional en	itity, a ph	ysical location	, property or an
		CodeNameBTBill-to-Party				
CUR02	100	Currency Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use
Description: Code (Standard ISO) for country in whose currency the charges are spe						
		User Note 1: This is the currency of the inv	oice.			

Comments:

1. See Figures Appendix for examples detailing the use of the CUR segment.

User Note 1:

ScanSource uses ISO 4217 currency codes exclusively for all currency codes.

REF Reference Identification

Reference Identification

Pos: 050 Max: 12 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify identifying information

Element Summary:

REF02

127

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Elem	ent Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
REF01	128	Refer	ence Identification Qualifier	M	ID	2/3	Must use
		Desc	ription: Code qualifying the Referenc				
		Code	Name				
		11	Account Number				
			User Note 1:				
			Future Use for Lockbox Information	١.			
		AW	Air Waybill Number				
		AY	Floor Plan Approval Number				
		CR	Customer Reference Number				
		SO	Shipper's Order (Invoice Number)				
		TC	Vendor Terms				
		AW1	Air Waybill Number				

Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Χ

ΑN

1/30

Used

Loop Name

Pos: 070 Repeat: 200

Optional

Loop: N1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
070	N1	Name	0	1		Used
090	N3	Address Information	0	2		Used
100	N4	Geographic Location	0	1		Used

N1 Name

Pos: 070 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> N101	<u>ld</u> 98	Element Name Entity Identifier Code	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Code identifying an organiza individual	tional er	ntity, a ph	ysical location,	property or an
		CodeNameBTBill-to-PartyPRPayerREParty to receive commercial invoiceSTShip To	remitta	nce		
N102	93	Name	Χ	AN	1/60	Used
		Description: Free-form name				
N103	66	Identification Code Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description: Code designating the system Code (67)	n/method	d of code	structure used	for Identification
		CodeName91Assigned by Seller or Seller's Agent	t			
N104	67	Identification Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or ot	her cod	е		

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of N102 or N103 is required.

N3 Address Information

Pos: 090 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N301	166	Address Information	M	AN	1/55	Must use
		Description: Address information				
N302	166	Address Information	0	AN	1/55	Used

Description: Address information

N4 Geographic Location

Pos: 100 Max: 1
Heading - Optional
Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N401	19	City Name	0	AN	2/30	Used
		Description: Free-form text for city name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	0	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code (Standard State/Provin agency	ice) as d	efined by	/ appropriate g	overnment
N403	116	Postal Code	0	ID	3/15	Used
		Description: Code defining international p blanks (zip code for United States)	ostal zo	ne code (excluding pund	tuation and
N404	26	Country Code	0	ID	2/3	Used
		Description: Code identifying the country				

Comments:

1. A combination of either N401 through N404, or N405 and N406 may be adequate to specify a location.

Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale

Pos: 130 Max: >1 **Heading - Optional** Loop: N/A Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used Purpose: To specify terms of sale

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
ITD03	338	Terms Discount Percent	0	R	1/6	Used
		Description: Terms discount percentage, e purchaser if an invoice is paid on or before	•		,	le to the
ITD05	351	Terms Discount Days Due	Χ	N0	1/3	Used
		Description: Number of days in the terms of terms discount is earned	discoun	t period b	y which payme	ent is due if
ITD07	386	Terms Net Days	0	N0	1/3	Used
		Description: Number of days until total inv	oice am	ount is d	ue (discount no	ot applicable)
ITD12	352	Description	0	AN	1/80	Used
		Description: A free-form description to clar	rify the r	elated da	ata elements a	nd their content

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

Syntax Rules:

1. L03040513 - If ITD03 is present, then at least one of ITD04, ITD05 or ITD13 is required.

4/16/2018 16

DTM Date/Time Reference

Pos: 140 Max: 10 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
DTM01	374	Date/Time Qualifier	M	ID	3/3	Must use
		Description: Code specifying type of date	or time,	or both o	date and time	
		Code Name				
		011 Shipped				
DTM02	373	Date	Х	DT	8/8	Used

Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

Syntax Rules:

1. R020305 - At least one of DTM02, DTM03 or DTM05 is required.

Loop Baseline Item Data (Invoice)

Pos: 010 Repeat: 200000
Optional

Loop: IT1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the basic and most frequently used line item data for the invoice and related transactions

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	IT1	Baseline Item Data (Invoice)	0	1		Used
060		Loop PID	0		1000	Used
120	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1		Used
160	CAD	Carrier Detail	0	>1		Used

IT1 Baseline Item Data (Invoice)

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: IT1 Elements: 10

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the basic and most frequently used line item data for the invoice and related transactions

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>				
IT101	350	Assigned Identification	М	AN	1/20	Must use				
		Description: Alphanumeric characters assigned for differentiation within a transaction set User Note 1: This is the line number on ScanSource sales order.								
		User Note 1: This is the line number on ScanSource sales order. User Note 2: If requested ScanSource can return Partner's line number from Partner PO.								
IT400	050									
IT102	358	Quantity Invoiced	Х	R	1/10	Used				
		Description: Number of units invoiced (su	pplier ur	nits)						
IT103	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code specifying the units in which a measurement has been taken All valid standard codes are used.	which a	value is l	peing expresse	ed, or manner in				
IT104	212	Unit Price	Χ	R	1/17	Used				
		Description: Price per unit of product, service, commodity, etc.								
IT106	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234)								
		CodeNameVPVendor's (Seller's) Part Number								
IT107	234	Product/Service ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used				
		Description: Identifying number for a prod	luct or se	ervice						
IT108	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234)	urce of th	ne descri	ptive number u	ised in				
		Code Name MG Manufacturer's Part Number								
IT109	234	Product/Service ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used				
		Description: Identifying number for a prod	luct or se	ervice						
IT110	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Х	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234)	urce of th	ne descri	ptive number u	ised in				
		CodeNameBPBuyer's Part Number								

IT111 234 Product/Service ID X AN 1/48 Used

Description: Identifying number for a product or service

Syntax Rules:

- 1. P020304 If either IT102, IT103 or IT104 are present, then the others are required.
- 2. P0607 If either IT106 or IT107 is present, then the other is required.
- 3. P0809 If either IT108 or IT109 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. P1011 If either IT110 or IT111 is present, then the other is required.

Semantics:

1.

Comments:

- 1. Element 235/234 combinations should be interpreted to include products and/or services. See the Data Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. IT106 through IT125 provide for ten different product/service IDs for each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

Loop Product/Item Description

Pos: 060 Repeat: 1000 Optional

Loop: PID Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
060	PID	Product/Item Description	0	1		Used

PID Product/Item Description

Pos: 060 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: PID Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
PID01	349	Item Description Type	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code indicating the format of	a descr	iption		
		Code Name				
		F Free-form				
PID05	352	Description	Х	AN	1/80	Used

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

Syntax Rules:

1. R0405 - At least one of PID04 or PID05 is required.

Comments:

1. If PID01 equals "F", then PID05 is used. If PID01 equals "S", then PID04 is used. If PID01 equals "X", then both PID04 and PID05 are used.

REF Reference Identification

Pos: 120 Max: >1
Detail - Optional
Loop: IT1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify identifying information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
REF01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	M	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	e Identi	fication		
		CodeNameSESerial Number				
REF02	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used

Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as

specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

CAD Carrier Detail

Pos: 160 Max: >1
Detail - Optional
Loop: IT1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify transportation details for the transaction

Element Summary:

Ref CAD01	<u>ld</u> 91	Element Name Transportation Method/Type Code	Req O	Type ID	Min/Max 1/2	<u>Usage</u> Used
		Description: Code specifying the method of	or type o	of transpo	ortation for the s	shipment
		CodeNameZZMutually defined				
CAD04	140	Standard Carrier Alpha Code	Χ	ID	2/4	Used
		Description: Standard Carrier Alpha Code				
CAD07	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	0	ID	2/3	Used
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	e Identi	fication		
		CodeNameSIShipper's Identifying Number for ShiTQTracer Action Request Number	pment (SID)		
CAD08	127	Reference Identification	Χ	AN	1/30	Used
		Description: Reference information as define specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particu	lar Transaction	Set or as

Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0504 At least one of CAD05 or CAD04 is required.
- 2. C0708 If CAD07 is present, then CAD08 is required.

TDS Total Monetary Value Summary

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify the total invoice discounts and amounts

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
TDS01	610	Amount	М	N2	1/15	Must use

Description: Monetary amount

Semantics:

1. TDS01 is the total amount of invoice (including charges, less allowances) before terms discount (if discount is applicable).

TXI Tax Information

Pos: 020 Max: 10 Summary - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify tax information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
TXI01	963	Tax Type Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the type of t	ax			
		Code Name				
		HS Public Health and Education Tax				
		LS State and Local Sales Tax				
		ST State Sales Tax				
		TX All Taxes				
TXI02	782	Monetary Amount	Х	R	1/18	Used

Description: Monetary amount

Syntax Rules:

1. R020306 - At least one of TXI02, TXI03 or TXI06 is required.

Semantics:

1. TXI02 is the monetary amount of the tax.

CAD Carrier Detail

Pos: 030 Max: 1 Summary - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify transportation details for the transaction

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CAD04	140	Standard Carrier Alpha Code	X	ID	2/4	Used

Description: Standard Carrier Alpha Code

Syntax Rules:

1. R0504 - At least one of CAD05 or CAD04 is required.

Loop Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information

Pos: 040 Repeat: 25
Optional
Loop: SAC Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
040	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	0	1		Used

SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information

Pos: 040 Max: 1 Summary - Optional Loop: SAC Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> SAC01	<u>ld</u> 248	Element Name Allowance or Charge Indicator	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Code which indicates an allo	wance o	r charge	for the service	specified
		CodeNameAAllowanceCCharge				
SAC02	1300	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Code	Х	ID	4/4	Used
		Description: Code identifying the service,	promotio	on, allow	ance, or charge	е
		CodeNameA570Beyond Freight ChargesD240FreightD570Heat in Transit ChargesD980InsuranceF050Other (See related description)G470Restocking ChargeG830Shipping and HandlingH740Tax - Sales and UseH750Tax - Sales Tax (State and Local)				
SAC05	610	Amount	0	N2	1/15	Used
		Description: Monetary amount				
SAC12	331	Allowance or Charge Method of Handling Code	0	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code indicating method of ha	andling fo	or an allo	wance or char	ge
		CodeName06Charge to be Paid by Customer				
SAC15	352	Description	Χ	AN	1/80	Used
		Description: A free-form description to cla	rify the r	elated da	ata elements a	nd their content

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of SAC02 or SAC03 is required.

Semantics:

1. If SAC01 is "A" or "C", then at least one of SAC05, SAC07, or SAC08 is required.

2. SAC05 is the total amount for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge.

Comments:

1. SAC04 may be used to uniquely identify the service, promotion, allowance, or charge. In addition, it may be used in conjunction to further the code in SAC02.

2. In some business applications, it is necessary to advise the trading partner of the actual dollar amount that a particular allowance, charge, or promotion was based on to reduce ambiguity. This amount is commonly referred to as "Dollar Basis Amount". It is represented in the SAC segment in SAC10 using the qualifier "DO" - Dollars in SAC09.

CTT Transaction Totals

Pos: 070 Max: 1 Summary - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	M	N0	1/6	Must use

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

Comments:

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

SE Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 080 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	М	N0	1/10	Must use
		Description: Total number of segments in segments	cluded ir	n a trans	action set inclu	iding ST and SE
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		Description: Identifying control number the functional group assigned by the originator				nsaction set

Comments:

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.

Functional Group Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 **Not Defined - Mandatory** oop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
GE01	97	Number of Transaction Sets Included	M	N0	1/6	Must use
		Description: Total number of transaction s interchange (transmission) group terminate			•	•
GE02	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use
		Description: Assigned number originated	and mai	ntained h	v the sender	

Description: Assigned number originated and maintained by the sender

Semantics:

1. The data interchange control number GE02 in this trailer must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group header, GS06.

Comments:

1. The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.

4/16/2018 33

IEA Interchange Control Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
IEA01	I16	Number of Included Functional Groups	M	N0	1/5	Must use
		Description: A count of the number of fund	ctional g	roups ind	cluded in an in	terchange
IEA02	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		Description: A control number assigned by	y the int	erchange	e sender	